

Journal of the Senate

THURSDAY, MAY 2, 2013

The Senate was called to order by the President.

Devotional Exercises

A moment of silence was observed in lieu of devotions.

Committee of Conference Appointed

H. 39.

An act relating to the Public Service Board and the Department of Public Service.

Was taken up. Pursuant to the request of the House, the President announced the appointment of

Senator MacDonald
Senator Lyons
Senator Snelling

as members of the Committee of Conference on the part of the Senate to consider the disagreeing votes of the two Houses.

Bill Referred to Committee on Appropriations

House bill of the following title, appearing on the Calendar for notice, and carrying an appropriation or requiring the expenditure of funds, under the rule, was referred to the Committee on Appropriations:

H. 200.

An act relating to civil penalties for possession of marijuana.

Joint Resolution Placed on Calendar

J.R.H. 9.

Joint resolution originating in the House of the following title was read the first time and is as follows:

Joint resolution authorizing the 2013 Green Mountain Boys' State educational program to use the State House

Whereas, the American Legion Department of Vermont sponsors annually the Green Mountain Boys' State program which provides an opportunity

for boys in high school to study the workings of state government in Montpelier, and

Whereas, as part of their visit to the state's capital city, the boys conduct a mock legislative session in the State House, and

Whereas, this is an invaluable educational experience that provides firsthand knowledge about the legislative process, now therefore be it

Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives:

That the Sergeant at Arms shall make available the chambers and committee rooms of the State House for the Green Mountain Boys' State program on Thursday, June 20, 2013, from 9:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., and be it further

Resolved: That the Secretary of State be directed to send a copy of this resolution to the American Legion Department of Vermont headquarters in Montpelier.

Thereupon, in the discretion of the President, under Rule 51, the joint resolution was placed on the Calendar for action the next legislative day.

Bill Referred

House bill of the following title was read the first time and referred:

H. 483.

An act relating to adopting revisions to Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code.

To the Committee on Rules.

Bills Passed in Concurrence with Proposals of Amendment

House bills of the following titles were severally read the third time and passed in concurrence with proposals of amendment:

H. 50. An act relating to the sale, transfer, or importation of pets.

H. 101. An act relating to hunting, fishing, and trapping.

Bill Passed in Concurrence

House bill of the following title was read the third time and passed in concurrence:

H. 315. An act relating to group health coverage for same-sex spouses.

Proposal of Amendment; Third Reading Ordered**H. 136.**

Senator Ayer, for the Committee on Health and Welfare, to which was referred House bill entitled:

An act relating to cost-sharing for preventive services.

Reported recommending that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 8 V.S.A. § 4100a is amended to read:

§ 4100a. MAMMOGRAMS; COVERAGE REQUIRED

(a) Insurers shall provide coverage for screening by ~~low-dose~~ mammography for the presence of occult breast cancer, as provided by this subchapter. Benefits provided shall cover the full cost of the mammography service, subject to a co-payment no greater than the co-payment applicable to care or services provided by a primary care physician under the insured's policy, provided that no co-payment shall exceed \$25.00. Mammography services shall not be subject to deductible or coinsurance requirements.

(b) For females 40 years or older, coverage shall be provided for an annual screening. For females less than 40 years of age, coverage for screening shall be provided upon recommendation of a health care provider.

(c) After January 1, 1994, this section shall apply only to screening procedures conducted by test facilities accredited by the American College of Radiologists.

(d) For purposes of this subchapter:

(1) "Insurer" means any insurance company which provides health insurance as defined in subdivision 3301(a)(2) of this title, nonprofit hospital and medical service corporations, and health maintenance organizations. The term does not apply to coverage for specified disease or other limited benefit coverage.

(2) ~~"Low-dose mammography"~~ "Mammography" means the x-ray examination of the breast using equipment dedicated specifically for mammography, including the x-ray tube, filter, compression device, screens, films and cassettes. ~~The average radiation dose to the breast shall be the lowest dose generally recognized by competent medical authority to be practicable for yielding acceptable radiographic images.~~

(3) "Screening" includes the ~~low-dose~~ mammography test procedure and a qualified physician's interpretation of the results of the procedure, including additional views and interpretation as needed.

Sec. 2. 8 V.S.A. § 4100g is amended to read:

§ 4100g. COLORECTAL CANCER SCREENING, COVERAGE REQUIRED

(a) For purposes of this section:

(1) "Colonoscopy" means a procedure that enables a physician to examine visually the inside of a patient's entire colon and includes the concurrent removal of polyps, biopsy, or both.

(2) "Insurer" means insurance companies that provide health insurance as defined in subdivision 3301(a)(2) of this title, nonprofit hospital and medical services corporations, and health maintenance organizations. The term does not apply to coverage for specified disease or other limited benefit coverage.

(b) Insurers shall provide coverage for colorectal cancer screening, including:

(1) Providing an insured 50 years of age or older with the option of:

(A) Annual fecal occult blood testing plus one flexible sigmoidoscopy every five years; or

(B) One colonoscopy every 10 years.

(2) For an insured who is at high risk for colorectal cancer, colorectal cancer screening examinations and laboratory tests as recommended by the treating physician.

(c) For the purposes of subdivision (b)(2) of this section, an individual is at high risk for colorectal cancer if the individual has:

(1) A family medical history of colorectal cancer or a genetic syndrome predisposing the individual to colorectal cancer;

(2) A prior occurrence of colorectal cancer or precursor polyps;

(3) A prior occurrence of a chronic digestive disease condition such as inflammatory bowel disease, Crohn's disease, or ulcerative colitis; or

(4) Other predisposing factors as determined by the individual's treating physician.

(d) Benefits provided shall cover the colorectal cancer screening subject to a co-payment no greater than the co-payment applicable to care or services

provided by a primary care physician under the insured's policy, provided that no co-payment shall exceed \$100.00 for services performed under contract with the insurer. Colorectal cancer screening services performed under contract with the insurer also shall not be subject to deductible or coinsurance requirements. In addition, an insured shall not be subject to any additional charge for any service associated with a procedure or test for colorectal cancer screening, which may include one or more of the following:

- (1) removal of tissue or other matter;
- (2) laboratory services;
- (3) physician services;
- (4) facility use; and
- (5) anesthesia.

~~(e) If determined to be permitted by Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, for a patient covered under the Medicare program, the patient's out-of-pocket expenditure for a colorectal cancer screening shall not exceed \$100.00, with the hospital or other health care facility where the screening is performed absorbing the difference between the Medicare payment and the Medicare negotiated rate for the screening. [Deleted.]~~

Sec. 3. STATUTORY CONSTRUCTION; LEGISLATIVE INTENT

The express enumeration of the services associated with a procedure or test for colorectal cancer in 8 V.S.A. § 4100g(d) shall not be construed as indicating legislative intent with respect to the scope of covered services associated with any other procedure or test referenced in the Vermont Statutes Annotated.

Sec. 4. 8 V.S.A. § 4100a(a) is amended to read:

(a) Insurers shall provide coverage for screening by mammography for the presence of occult breast cancer, as provided by this subchapter. Benefits provided shall cover the full cost of the mammography service, ~~subject to a co-payment no greater than the co-payment applicable to care or services provided by a primary care physician under the insured's policy, provided that no co-payment shall exceed \$25.00. Mammography services~~ and shall not be subject to any co-payment, deductible, or coinsurance requirements, or other cost-sharing requirement or additional charge.

Sec. 5. 8 V.S.A. § 4100g(d) is amended to read:

~~(d) Benefits provided shall cover the colorectal cancer screening subject to a co-payment no greater than the co-payment applicable to care or services provided by a primary care physician under the insured's policy, provided that~~

~~no co-payment shall exceed \$100.00 for services performed under contract with the insurer.~~ Colorectal cancer screening services performed under contract with the insurer ~~also~~ shall not be subject to any co-payment, deductible, or coinsurance requirements, or other cost-sharing requirement. In addition, an insured shall not be subject to any additional charge for any service associated with a procedure or test for colorectal cancer screening, which may include one or more of the following:

- (1) removal of tissue or other matter;
- (2) laboratory services;
- (3) physician services;
- (4) facility use; and
- (5) anesthesia.

Sec. 6. EFFECTIVE DATE

(a) Secs. 4 and 5 of this act shall take effect on October 1, 2013 and shall apply to all health benefit plans on and after October 1, 2013 on such date as a health insurer offers, issues, or renews the health benefit plan, but in no event later than October 1, 2014.

(b) The remaining sections of this act shall take effect upon passage.

And that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with such proposal of amendment.

Thereupon, the bill was read the second time by title only pursuant to Rule 43, and the proposal of amendment was agreed to, and third reading of the bill was ordered.

Proposals of Amendment; Third Reading Ordered

H. 182.

Senator McAllister, for the Committee on Government Operations, to which was referred House bill entitled:

An act relating to search and rescue.

Reported recommending that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, in 20 V.S.A. § 1845 (search and rescue report; response), in subdivision (b)(1), by adding a second sentence to read as follows: The Department shall also ensure that notification is made to any municipal police and fire departments of the town in which the person is missing, any volunteer

fire departments of that town, and any emergency medical service providers of that town which are in the search and rescue database.

Second: In Sec. 1, in 20 V.S.A. § 1847 (Search and Rescue Council), by striking out subdivision (b)(1) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(b)(1) Membership. The Council shall be composed of ten members who shall serve two-year terms commencing on July 1 of each odd-numbered year. Members of the Council shall be as follows:

(A) the Search and Rescue Coordinator;

(B) the Vermont State Police Search and Rescue Team Leader;

(C) one member of the House of Representatives, appointed by the Speaker of the House;

(D) one member of the Senate, appointed by the Senate Committee on Committees;

(E) one member of the Department of Fish and Wildlife, appointed by the Commissioner of the Department;

(F) one member of the public with experience in search and rescue operations, appointed by the Governor;

(G) one member of the National Ski Patrol or the Green Mountain Club with extensive experience in search and rescue operations, appointed by the Governor;

(H) one member of a professional or volunteer search and rescue organization, appointed by the Governor; and

(I) one volunteer firefighter and one career firefighter, appointed by the Governor.

Third: By striking out Sec. 4 (effective dates) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following two new sections to read as follows:

Sec. 4. PUBLICATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF SEARCH AND RESCUE PROTOCOL

(a) The Search and Rescue Coordinator set forth in Sec. 1 of this act shall publish a search and rescue protocol that describes the procedure set forth in Sec. 1, in 20 V.S.A. § 1845, that is required to be followed by any public safety agency or any nonpublic entity that specializes in protecting the safety of the public and which is included in the search and rescue database. The protocol shall be published as a resource for those agencies and entities to understand their responsibilities under Sec. 1, 20 V.S.A. § 1845, of this act.

(b) The Search and Rescue Coordinator shall ensure that the protocol is distributed to those public safety agencies and nonpublic entities within five business days of its publication.

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATES

This act shall take effect on passage, except that:

(1) Sec. 1, 20 V.S.A. § 1846 (search and rescue database), shall take effect no later than 15 days after passage of this act. The search and rescue database shall be established, populated, and used as set forth in 20 V.S.A. § 1846 upon its effective date; and

(2) Sec. 4 (publication and distribution of search and rescue protocol) shall take effect 15 days after the passage of this act.

And that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with such proposals of amendment.

Senator Sears, for the Committee on Appropriations, to which the bill was referred, reported recommending that the Senate propose to the House that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Government Operations with the following amendments thereto:

First: In Sec. 1, in § 1820 (definitions), by striking out subdivision (1) and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(1) “Missing person” means an individual:

(A) whose whereabouts is unknown; and

(B)(i) ~~who is with either physically disabled, mentally disabled a physical disability, a mental disability, or a developmental disability; or~~

(ii) who is an unemancipated minor.

Second: In Sec. 1, in § 1847 (Search and Rescue Council), by striking out subdivision (b)(1) (membership) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(b)(1) Membership. The Council shall be composed of eight members who shall serve two-year terms commencing on July 1 of each odd-numbered year. Members of the Council shall be as follows:

(A) the Search and Rescue Coordinator;

(B) the Vermont State Police Search and Rescue Team Leader;

(C) one member of the Department of Fish and Wildlife, appointed by the Commissioner of the Department;

(D) one member of the public with experience in search and rescue operations, appointed by the Governor;

(E) one member of the National Ski Patrol or the Green Mountain Club with extensive experience in search and rescue operations, appointed by the Governor;

(F) one member of a professional or volunteer search and rescue organization, appointed by the Governor; and

(G) one volunteer firefighter and one career firefighter, appointed by the Governor.

Third: In Sec. 1, in § 1847 (Search and Rescue Council), in subsection (f) (reimbursement), by striking out the last sentence

Fourth: By adding a new section to be numbered Sec. 4a to read as follows:
Sec. 4a. REPEAL

20 V.S.A. § 1847 (Search and Rescue Council) is repealed.

Fifth: By striking out Sec. 5 (Effective Dates) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATES

This act shall take effect on passage, except that:

(1) In Sec. 1 of this act, 20 V.S.A. § 1846 (search and rescue database) shall take effect no later than 15 days after passage of this act. The search and rescue database shall be established, populated, and used as set forth in 20 V.S.A. § 1846 upon its effective date;

(2) Sec. 4 (publication and distribution of search and rescue protocol) of this act shall take effect 15 days after the passage of this act; and

(3) Sec. 4a (repeal of 20 V.S.A. § 1847 (Search and Rescue Council) of this act shall take effect on June 30, 2017.

And that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with such proposals of amendment.

Thereupon, the bill was read the second time by title only pursuant to Rule 43, and the recommendation of proposal of amendment of the Committee on Government Operations was amended as recommended by the Committee on Appropriations.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the Senate propose to the House that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Government Operations, as amended?, Senators Mazza and White moved to amend the

proposal of amendment of the Committee on Government Operations, as amended, in Sec. 1, in § 1847 (Search and Rescue Council), in subdivision (b)(1)(G), after “one volunteer firefighter and one career firefighter,” by inserting the following each of whom has obtained National Association of Search and Rescue “SARTECH 3” or equivalent training and either Incident Command System (ICS) 200 or National Incident Management System (NIMS) 300 training.

Which was agreed to.

Thereupon, the proposals of amendment recommended by the Committee on Government Operations, as amended, were agreed to and third reading of the bill was ordered.

Proposal of Amendment; Consideration Interrupted by Recess

H. 522.

Senator Fox, for the Committee on Health and Welfare, to which was referred House bill entitled:

An act relating to strengthening Vermont’s response to opioid addiction and methamphetamine abuse.

Reported recommending that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

* * * Legislative Intent * * *

Sec. 1. LEGISLATIVE INTENT

(a) This act is intended to provide a comprehensive approach to combating opioid addiction and methamphetamine abuse in Vermont through strategies that address prevention, treatment, and recovery, and increase community safety by reducing drug-related crime.

(b) It is the intent of the General Assembly that the initiatives described in this act should be integrated to the extent possible with the Blueprint for Health and Vermont’s health care system and health care reform initiatives.

* * * Preventing Abuse of Prescription Drugs * * *

Sec. 2. 18 V.S.A. § 4201 is amended to read:

§ 4201. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

* * *

(26) "Prescription" means an order for a regulated drug made by a physician, physician assistant, advanced practice registered nurse, dentist, or veterinarian licensed under this chapter to prescribe such a drug which shall be in writing except as otherwise specified herein in this subdivision. Prescriptions for such drugs shall be made to the order of an individual patient, dated as of the day of issue and signed by the prescriber. The prescription shall bear the full name ~~and~~, address, and date of birth of the patient, or if the patient is an animal, the name and address of the owner of the animal and the species of the animal. Such prescription shall also bear the full name, address, and registry number of the prescriber and, unless electronically prescribed, shall be written with ink, indelible pencil, or typewriter; if typewritten, it shall be signed by the ~~physician~~ prescriber. A written or typewritten prescription for a controlled substance, as defined in 21 C.F.R. Part 1308, shall contain the quantity of the drug written both in numeric and word form.

* * *

Sec. 2a. 18 V.S.A. § 4202(d) is amended to read:

(d) The regulations adopted by the ~~board of health~~ Board of Health under section 4201 of this title for the purpose of determining those drugs defined under that section may be adopted only after prior written notice to the ~~board of pharmacy~~ Board of Pharmacy and the ~~board of medical practice~~ Board of Medical Practice and after the ~~board of pharmacy~~ Board of Pharmacy and the ~~board of medical practice~~ Board of Medical Practice have had an opportunity to advise the ~~board of health~~ Board of Health with respect to the form and substance of those regulations or amendments and to recommend revisions thereof, except with respect to emergency rules adopted pursuant to 3 V.S.A. § 844, which may be adopted without notice by the Commissioner of Health.

Sec. 3. 18 V.S.A. § 4215b is added to read:

§ 4215b. IDENTIFICATION

Only a patient for whom a prescription was written, the owner of an animal for which a prescription was written, or a bona fide representative of the patient or animal owner, as defined by the Board of Pharmacy by rule after consultation with the Commissioner of Health, may pick up a prescription for a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance. Prior to dispensing a prescription for a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance, a pharmacist shall require the individual receiving the drug to provide a signature and show valid and current government-issued photographic identification as evidence that the individual is the patient for whom the prescription was written, the owner of the animal for which the prescription was written, or the bona fide representative of the patient or animal owner. If the individual does not have valid, current

government-issued photographic identification, the pharmacist may request alternative evidence of the individual's identity, as appropriate.

Sec. 3a. BOARD OF PHARMACY; RULEMAKING

The Board of Pharmacy shall adopt rules pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 to define which persons shall be considered bona fide representatives of a patient or animal owner for the purposes of picking up a prescription for a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 4215b.

Sec. 4. 18 V.S.A. § 4218 is amended to read:

§ 4218. ENFORCEMENT

* * *

(d) Nothing in this section shall authorize the ~~department of public safety~~ Department of Public Safety and other authorities described in subsection (a) of this section to have access to VPMS (~~Vermont prescription monitoring system~~) (Vermont Prescription Monitoring System) created pursuant to chapter 84A of this title, except as provided in that chapter.

(e) The Department of Public Safety, in consultation with representatives of licensed Vermont pharmacies, shall adopt standard operating guidelines for accessing pharmacy records through the authority granted in this section. Any person authorized to access pharmacy records pursuant to subsection (a) of this section shall follow the Department of Public Safety's guidelines. These guidelines shall be a public record.

Sec. 5. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY; REPORTING STANDARD OPERATING GUIDELINES

On or before December 15, 2013, the Commissioner of Public Safety shall submit to the House and Senate Committees on Judiciary, the House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care, and the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare the Department's written standard operating guidelines used to access pharmacy records at individual pharmacies pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 4218. Subsequently, if the guidelines are substantively amended by the Department, it shall submit the amended guidelines to the same committees as soon as practicable.

Sec. 6. 18 V.S.A. § 4282 is amended to read:

§ 4282. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

* * *

~~(3) “Trained law enforcement officer” shall include any officer designated by the department of public safety who has completed a training program established by rule by the department of health, which is designed to ensure that officers have the training necessary to use responsibly and properly any information that they receive from VPMS.~~

(4) “VPMS” shall mean the Vermont prescription monitoring system established under this chapter.

(4) “Delegate” means an individual employed by a health care provider or pharmacy or in the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner and authorized by a health care provider or dispenser or by the Chief Medical Examiner to request information from the VPMS relating to a bona fide current patient of the health care provider or dispenser or to a bona fide investigation or inquiry into an individual’s death.

(5) “Department” means the Department of Health.

(6) “Drug diversion investigator” means an employee of the Department of Public Safety whose primary duties include investigations involving violations of laws regarding prescription drugs or the diversion of prescribed controlled substances, and who has completed a training program established by the Department of Health by rule that is designed to ensure that officers have the training necessary to use responsibly and properly any information that they receive from the VPMS.

(7) “Evidence-based” means based on criteria and guidelines that reflect high-quality, cost-effective care. The methodology used to determine such guidelines shall meet recognized standards for systematic evaluation of all available research and shall be free from conflicts of interest. Consideration of the best available scientific evidence does not preclude consideration of experimental or investigational treatment or services under a clinical investigation approved by an institutional review board.

Sec. 7. 18 V.S.A. § 4283 is amended to read:

§ 4283. CREATION; IMPLEMENTATION

~~(a) Contingent upon the receipt of funding, the department may establish~~
The Department shall maintain an electronic database and reporting system for monitoring Schedules II, III, and IV controlled substances, as defined in 21 C.F.R. Part 1308, as amended and as may be amended, that are dispensed within the state State of Vermont by a health care provider or dispenser or dispensed to an address within the state State by a pharmacy licensed by the Vermont board of pharmacy Board of Pharmacy.

* * *

(e) It is not the intention of the ~~department~~ Department that a health care provider or a dispenser shall have to pay a fee or tax or purchase hardware or proprietary software required by the ~~department~~ Department specifically for the use, establishment, maintenance, or transmission of the data. The ~~department~~ Department shall seek grant funds and take any other action within its financial capability to minimize any cost impact to health care providers and dispensers.

* * *

Sec. 8. 18 V.S.A. § 4284 is amended to read:

§ 4284. PROTECTION AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

(a) The data collected pursuant to this chapter and all related information and records shall be confidential, except as provided in this chapter, and shall not be subject to ~~public records law~~ the Public Records Act. The ~~department~~ Department shall maintain procedures to protect patient privacy, ensure the confidentiality of patient information collected, recorded, transmitted, and maintained, and ensure that information is not disclosed to any person except as provided in this section.

~~(b)(1) The department shall be authorized to provide data to~~ Department shall provide only the following persons with access to query the VPMS:

~~(1) A patient or that person's health care provider, or both, when VPMS reveals that a patient may be receiving more than a therapeutic amount of one or more regulated substances.~~

~~(2)(A)~~ (A) A health care provider ~~or~~ dispenser, or delegate who ~~requests information~~ is registered with the VPMS and certifies that the requested information is for the purpose of providing medical or pharmaceutical treatment to a bona fide current patient.

(B) Personnel or contractors, as necessary for establishing and maintaining the VPMS.

(C) The Medical Director of the Department of Vermont Health Access, for the purposes of Medicaid quality assurance, utilization, and federal monitoring requirements with respect to Medicaid recipients for whom a Medicaid claim for a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance has been submitted.

(D) A medical examiner or delegate from the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner, for the purpose of conducting an investigation or inquiry into the cause, manner, and circumstances of an individual's death.

(E) A health care provider or medical examiner licensed to practice in another state, to the extent necessary to provide appropriate medical care to a Vermont resident or to investigate the death of a Vermont resident.

(2) The Department shall provide reports of data available to the Department through the VPMS only to the following persons:

(A) A patient or that person's health care provider, or both, when VPMS reveals that a patient may be receiving more than a therapeutic amount of one or more regulated substances.

~~(3)~~(B) A designated representative of a board responsible for the licensure, regulation, or discipline of health care providers or dispensers pursuant to a bona fide specific investigation.

~~(4)~~(C) A patient for whom a prescription is written, insofar as the information relates to that patient.

~~(5)~~(D) The relevant occupational licensing or certification authority if the ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner reasonably suspects fraudulent or illegal activity by a health care provider. The licensing or certification authority may report the data that are the evidence for the suspected fraudulent or illegal activity to a ~~trained law enforcement officer~~ drug diversion investigator.

~~(6)~~(E)(i) The ~~commissioner of public safety~~ Commissioner of Public Safety, personally, or the Deputy Commissioner of Public Safety, personally, if the ~~commissioner of health~~ Commissioner of Health, personally, or a Deputy Commissioner of Health, personally, makes the disclosure, and has consulted with at least one of the patient's health care providers, and believes that when the disclosure is necessary to avert a serious and imminent threat to a person or the public.

(ii) The Commissioner of Public Safety, personally, or the Deputy Commissioner of Public Safety, personally, when he or she requests data from the Commissioner of Health, and the Commissioner of Health believes, after consultation with at least one of the patient's health care providers, that disclosure is necessary to avert a serious and imminent threat to a person or the public.

(iii) The Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner of Public Safety may disclose such data received pursuant to this subdivision (E) as is necessary, in his or her discretion, to avert the serious and imminent threat.

~~(7) Personnel or contractors, as necessary for establishing and maintaining the VPMS.~~

(F) A prescription monitoring system or similar entity in another state pursuant to a reciprocal agreement to share prescription monitoring

information with the Vermont Department of Health as described in section 4288 of this title.

(c) A person who receives data or a report from VPMS or from the ~~department~~ Department shall not share that data or report with any other person or entity not eligible to receive that data pursuant to subsection (b) of this section, except as necessary and consistent with the purpose of the disclosure and in the normal course of business. Nothing shall restrict the right of a patient to share his or her own data.

(d) The ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner shall offer health care providers and dispensers training in the proper use of information they may receive from VPMS. Training may be provided in collaboration with professional associations representing health care providers and dispensers.

(e) A ~~trained law enforcement officer~~ drug diversion investigator who may receive information pursuant to this section shall not have access to VPMS except for information provided to the officer by the licensing or certification authority.

(f) The ~~department~~ Department is authorized to use information from VPMS for research, trend analysis, and other public health promotion purposes provided that data are aggregated or otherwise de-identified. The Department shall post the results of trend analyses on its website for use by health care providers, dispensers, and the general public. When appropriate, the Department shall send alerts relating to identified trends to health care providers and dispensers by electronic mail.

(g) Following consultation with the Unified Pain Management System Advisory Council and an opportunity for input from stakeholders, the Department shall develop a policy that will enable it to use information from VPMS to determine if individual prescribers and dispensers are using VPMS appropriately.

(h) Following consultation with the Unified Pain Management System Advisory Council and an opportunity for input from stakeholders, the Department shall develop a policy that will enable it to evaluate the prescription of regulated drugs by prescribers.

(i) Knowing disclosure of transmitted data to a person not authorized by subsection (b) of this section, or obtaining information under this section not relating to a bona fide specific investigation, shall be punishable by imprisonment for not more than one year or a fine of not more than \$1,000.00, or both, in addition to any penalties under federal law.

(j) All information and correspondence relating to the disclosure of information by the Commissioner to a patient's health care provider pursuant

to subdivision (b)(2)(A) of this section shall be confidential and privileged, exempt from public inspection and copying under the Public Records Act, immune from subpoena or other disclosure, and not subject to discovery or introduction into evidence.

(k) Each request for disclosure of data pursuant to subdivision (b)(2)(B) of this section shall document a bona fide specific investigation and shall specify the case number of the investigation.

Sec. 9. 18 V.S.A. § 4287 is amended to read:

§ 4287. RULEMAKING

~~The department~~ Department shall adopt rules for the implementation of VPMS as defined in this chapter consistent with 45 C.F.R. Part 164, as amended and as may be amended, that limit the disclosure to the minimum information necessary for purposes of this act ~~and shall keep the senate and house committees on judiciary, the senate committee on health and welfare, and the house committee on human services advised of the substance and progress of initial rulemaking pursuant to this section.~~

Sec. 10. 18 V.S.A. § 4288 is added to read:

§ 4288. RECIPROCAL AGREEMENTS

The Department of Health may enter into reciprocal agreements with other states that have prescription monitoring programs so long as access under such agreement is consistent with the privacy, security, and disclosure protections in this chapter.

Sec. 11. 18 V.S.A. § 4289 is added to read:

§ 4289. STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES FOR HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS AND DISPENSERS

(a) Each professional licensing authority for health care providers shall develop evidence-based standards to guide health care providers in the appropriate prescription of Schedules II, III, and IV controlled substances for treatment of chronic pain and for other medical conditions to be determined by the licensing authority. The standards developed by the licensing authorities shall be consistent with rules adopted by the Department of Health.

(b)(1) Each health care provider who prescribes any Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substances shall register with the VPMS by November 15, 2013.

(2) If the VPMS shows that a patient has filled a prescription for a controlled substance written by a health care provider who is not a registered user of VPMS, the Commissioner of Health shall notify the applicable

licensing authority and the provider by mail of the provider's registration requirement pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection.

(3) The Commissioner of Health shall develop additional procedures to ensure that all health care providers who prescribe controlled substances are registered in compliance with subdivision (1) of this subsection.

(c) Each dispenser who dispenses any Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substances shall register with the VPMS.

(d) Health care providers shall query the VPMS with respect to an individual patient in the following circumstances:

(1) at least annually for patients who are receiving ongoing treatment with an opioid Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance;

(2) when starting a patient on a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance for nonpalliative, long-term pain therapy of 90 days or more; and

(3) prior to writing a replacement prescription for a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance pursuant to section 4290 of this title.

(e) The Commissioner of Health shall, after consultation with the Unified Pain Management System Advisory Council, adopt rules necessary to effect the purposes of this section. The Commissioner and the Council shall consider additional circumstances under which health care providers should be required to query the VPMS, including whether health care providers should be required to query the VPMS:

(1) the first time the provider prescribes an opioid Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance written to treat chronic pain; and

(2) when a patient requests renewal of a prescription for an opioid Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance written to treat acute pain.

(f) Each professional licensing authority for dispensers shall adopt standards, consistent with rules adopted by the Department of Health under this section, regarding the frequency and circumstances under which its respective licensees shall:

(1) query the VPMS; and

(2) report to the VPMS, which shall be no less than once every seven days.

(g) Each professional licensing authority for health care providers and dispensers shall consider the statutory requirements, rules, and standards adopted pursuant to this section in disciplinary proceedings when determining whether a licensee has complied with the applicable standard of care.

Sec. 11a. REPORTING OF DISPENSER STANDARDS

No later than March 31, 2014, each professional licensing authority for dispensers shall submit the standards required by 18 V.S.A. § 4289(e) to the VPMS Advisory Committee established in 18 V.S.A. § 4286.

Sec. 12. 18 V.S.A. § 4290 is added to read:

§ 4290. REPLACEMENT PRESCRIPTIONS AND MEDICATIONS

(a) As used in this section, “replacement prescription” means an unscheduled prescription request in the event that the document on which a patient’s prescription was written or the patient’s prescribed medication is reported to the prescriber as having been lost or stolen.

(b) When a patient or a patient’s parent or guardian requests a replacement prescription for a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance, the patient’s health care provider shall query the VPMS prior to writing the replacement prescription to determine whether the patient may be receiving more than a therapeutic dosage of the controlled substance.

(c) When a health care provider writes a replacement prescription pursuant to this section, the provider shall clearly indicate as much by writing the word “REPLACEMENT” on the face of the prescription. The health care provider shall document the writing of the replacement prescription in the patient’s medical record.

Sec. 13. VPMS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

(a)(1) The Commissioner shall maintain an advisory committee to assist in the implementation and periodic evaluation of the Vermont Prescription Monitoring System (VPMS).

(2) The Committee shall make recommendations regarding ways to improve the utility of the VPMS and its data.

(3) The Committee shall have access to aggregated, deidentified data from the VPMS.

(b) The VPMS Advisory Committee shall be chaired by the Commissioner of Health or designee and shall include the following members:

(1) the Deputy Commissioner of Health for Alcohol and Drug Abuse Programs;

(2) a representative from the Vermont Medical Society;

(3) a representative from the American College of Emergency Physicians - Vermont Chapter;

(4) a representative from the Vermont State Nurses Association;

- (5) a representative from the Vermont Board of Medical Practice;
 - (6) a representative from the Vermont Board of Pharmacy;
 - (7) a representative from the Vermont Pharmacists Association;
 - (8) a representative from the Vermont State Dental Society;
 - (9) the Commissioner of Public Safety;
 - (10) a representative of the Vermont Attorney General;
 - (11) a representative of the Vermont Substance Abuse Treatment Providers Association;
 - (12) a mental health provider or a certified alcohol and drug abuse counselor;
 - (13) a consumer in recovery from prescription drug abuse;
 - (14) a consumer receiving medical treatment for chronic pain; and
 - (15) any other member invited by the Commissioner.
- (c) The Committee shall meet at least once annually but may be convened at any time by the Commissioner or the Commissioner's designee.
- (d) On or before January 15, 2014, the Committee shall provide recommendations to the House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care and the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare regarding ways to maximize the effectiveness and appropriate use of the VPMS database, including adding new reporting capabilities, in order to improve patient outcomes and avoid prescription drug diversion. The Committee shall also report on the feasibility of obtaining real-time information from the VPMS and on its evaluation of whether increasing the frequency of dispenser reporting to the VPMS from at least once every seven days to at least once every 24 hours, or more frequently, would yield substantial benefits.
- (e) The Committee shall cease to exist on July 1, 2014.

Sec. 13a. REPORT ON INTEGRATION OF ELECTRONIC MEDICAL RECORDS AND THE VERMONT PRESCRIPTION MONITORING SYSTEM

On or before December 1, 2014, the Department of Health shall provide to the House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care, the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare, and the House and Senate Committees on Judiciary a report evaluating the potential for the integration of electronic medical records with the VPMS. The report shall include an assessment of the feasibility of the integration, identification of potential barriers to the integration, and an estimate of the costs associated with the integration.

Sec. 13b. REPORT ON PREVENTION ACTIVITIES

(a) The Agency of Education and the Department of Health shall use the School Health Profile to survey public and approved independent middle and high schools in Vermont to determine the quality and effectiveness of substance abuse prevention education in Vermont's schools.

(b) On or before January 15, 2015, the Secretary of Education and the Commissioner of Health shall report their evaluation of the quality and effectiveness of substance abuse prevention education in Vermont based on the results of the survey required by this section, as well as their recommendations for evidence-based and data-driven practices to be incorporated into school quality standards in the health education domain, to the House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care, the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare, and the House and Senate Committees on Education and on Judiciary.

* * * Improving Access to Treatment and Recovery * * *

Sec. 14. UNIFIED PAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ADVISORY COUNCIL

(a) There is hereby created a Unified Pain Management System Advisory Council for the purpose of advising the Commissioner of Health on matters relating to the appropriate use of controlled substances in treating chronic pain and addiction and in preventing prescription drug abuse.

(b) The Unified Pain Management System Advisory Council shall consist of the following members:

(1) the Commissioner of Health or designee, who shall serve as chair;

(2) the Deputy Commissioner of Health for Alcohol and Drug Abuse Programs or designee;

(3) the Commissioner of Mental Health or designee;

(4) the Director of the Blueprint for Health or designee;

(5) the Chair of the Board of Medical Practice or designee, who shall be a clinician;

(6) a representative of the Vermont State Dental Society, who shall be a dentist;

(7) a representative of the Vermont Board of Pharmacy, who shall be a pharmacist;

(8) a faculty member of the academic detailing program at the University of Vermont's College of Medicine;

(9) a faculty member of the University of Vermont's College of Medicine with expertise in the treatment of addiction or chronic pain management;

(10) a representative of the Vermont Medical Society, who shall be a primary care clinician;

(11) a representative of the American Academy of Family Physicians, Vermont chapter, who shall be a primary care clinician;

(12) a representative from the Vermont Board of Osteopathic Physicians, who shall be an osteopath;

(13) a representative of the Federally Qualified Health Centers, who shall be a primary care clinician selected by the Bi-State Primary Care Association;

(14) a representative of the Vermont Ethics Network;

(15) a representative of the Hospice and Palliative Care Council of Vermont;

(16) a representative of the Office of the Health Care Ombudsman;

(17) the Medical Director for the Department of Vermont Health Access;

(18) a clinician who works in the emergency department of a hospital, to be selected by the Vermont Association of Hospitals and Health Systems in consultation with any nonmember hospitals;

(19) a member of the Vermont Board of Nursing Subcommittee on APRN Practice, who shall be an advanced practice registered nurse;

(20) a representative from the Vermont Assembly of Home Health and Hospice Agencies;

(21) a psychologist licensed pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 55 who has experience in treating chronic pain, to be selected by the Board of Psychological Examiners;

(22) a drug and alcohol abuse counselor licensed pursuant to 33 V.S.A. chapter 8, to be selected by the Deputy Commissioner of Health for Alcohol and Drug Abuse Programs;

(23) a retail pharmacist, to be selected by the Vermont Pharmacists Association;

(24) an advanced practice registered nurse full-time faculty member from the University of Vermont's Department of Nursing; and

(25) a consumer representative who is either a consumer in recovery from prescription drug abuse or a consumer receiving medical treatment for chronic noncancer-related pain.

(c) Advisory Council members who are not employed by the State or whose participation is not supported through their employment or association shall be entitled to a per diem and expenses as provided by 32 V.S.A. § 1010.

(d)(1) The Advisory Council shall provide advice to the Commissioner concerning rules for the appropriate use of controlled substances in treating chronic noncancer pain and addiction and in preventing prescription drug abuse.

(2) The Advisory Council shall evaluate the use of nonpharmacological approaches to treatment for chronic pain, including the appropriateness, efficacy, and cost-effectiveness of using complementary and alternative therapies such as chiropractic, acupuncture, and massage.

(e) The Commissioner of Health may adopt rules pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 regarding the appropriate use of controlled substances after seeking the advice of the Council.

Sec. 14a. COMPLEMENTARY AND ALTERNATIVE TREATMENT REPORT

On or before January 15, 2014, the Commissioner of Health shall provide to the House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care and the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare the findings and recommendations of the Unified Pain Management System Advisory Council's initial evaluation of the use of nonpharmacological approaches to treatment for chronic pain, including the use of complementary and alternative therapies. The Commissioner shall provide the Committees with additional recommendations as appropriate as the Advisory Council continues to consider nonpharmacological approaches to treating chronic pain.

Sec. 14b. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH; ACCESS TO OPIOID TREATMENT

(a) The prevalence of opioid addiction and the lack of sufficient access to opioid treatment in Vermont pose an imminent peril to the public health, welfare, and safety to our citizens.

(b) The Vermont Department of Health shall study how Vermont can increase access to opioid treatment, including methadone and suboxone, by establishing a program whereby state-licensed physicians who are affiliated with a licensed opioid maintenance treatment program may provide methadone or suboxone to opioid-dependent people.

(c) The Commissioner of Health shall consult with the following people:

(1) The Deputy Commissioner of Health for Alcohol and Drug Abuse Programs;

(2) a representative from the Vermont Medical Society;

(3) a representative from the Vermont State Nurses Association;

(4) a representative from the Vermont Board of Medical Practice;

(5) a representative from the Vermont Board of Pharmacy;

(6) a representative from the Vermont Pharmacists Association;

(7) the Commissioner of Public Safety;

(8) a representative of the Vermont Attorney General;

(9) a representative of the Vermont Substance Abuse Treatment Providers Association;

(10) a mental health provider or a certified alcohol and drug abuse counselor;

(11) a consumer in recovery from prescription drug abuse;

(12) a representative from a clinical laboratory providing drug testing and clinical support services to addiction treatment programs;

(13) the Commissioner of Corrections;

(14) The Defender General; and

(15) any other member designated by the Commissioner of Health.

(d)(1) The Department of Health shall adopt rules establishing a program whereby state-licensed physicians who are affiliated with a licensed opioid maintenance treatment program may provide methadone or suboxone to opioid-dependent people. Such rules may be adopted as emergency rules in accordance with 3 V.S.A. chapter 25. The Department may adopt and enforce such reasonable rules and procedures as are deemed necessary to carry out the administration of the provisions of this section.

(2) The Commissioner of Health shall report its findings, including any recommendations or proposed legislation to the House Committees on Health Care and on Human Services and Senate Committees on Judiciary and on Health and Welfare on or before January 15, 2014.

Sec. 14c. 33 V.S.A. § 703 is amended to read:

§ 703. ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNCIL; CREATION; TERMS; PER DIEM

(a) ~~The alcohol and drug abuse council~~ Alcohol and Drug Abuse Council is established within the ~~agency of human services~~ Agency of Human Services to promote the reduction of problems arising from alcohol and drug abuse by advising the Secretary on policy areas that can inform agency programs.

(b) The ~~council~~ Council shall consist of ~~eleven~~ 11 members:

(1) ~~the secretary of the agency of human services, commissioner of public safety, commissioner of education, commissioner of liquor control, and commissioner of motor vehicles~~ Secretary of Human Services, Commissioner of Public Safety, Secretary of Education, Commissioner of Liquor Control, and Commissioner of Motor Vehicles or their designees;

(2) one member shall be a member of a mental health or substance abuse agency who shall be appointed by the ~~governor~~ Governor; and

(3) five members shall be appointed by the ~~governor~~ Governor of which every consideration shall be given, if possible, to equal geographic apportionment. ~~One of these~~ Consideration will be given for one of these members ~~shall~~ to be a certified practicing teacher and one of these members ~~shall~~ to be a school administrator.

(c) The term of office of members appointed pursuant to subdivisions (b)(2) and (b)(3) of this section shall be three years.

(d) ~~The secretary of the agency of human services~~ council membership shall annually elect a member to serve as chairperson.

(e) All members shall be voting members.

(f) At the expiration of the term of an appointed member, or in the event of a vacancy during an unexpired term, the new member shall be appointed in the same manner as his or her predecessor. Members of the ~~council~~ Council may be reappointed.

(g) Each member of the ~~council~~ Council not otherwise receiving compensation from the ~~state~~ State of Vermont or any political subdivision thereof shall be entitled to receive per diem compensation ~~of \$30.00 for each day as provided in 32 V.S.A. § 1010(b).~~ Each member shall be entitled to his or her actual and necessary expenses.

Sec. 15. OPIOID ADDICTION TREATMENT IN HOSPITALS

Pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 4240(b)(5), the Department of Health, in collaboration with the Vermont Association of Hospitals and Health Systems,

the Vermont Association for Mental Health and Addiction Recovery, and the Vermont Council of Developmental and Mental Health Services, shall, subject to available resources, develop evidence-based guidelines and training for hospitals regarding:

- (1) screening for addiction;
- (2) performing addiction interventions;
- (3) making referrals to addiction treatment and recovery services for victims admitted to or treated in a hospital emergency department; and
- (4) informing hospitals about the specific addiction treatment and recovery services available in the hospital's service area.

Sec. 15a. REPORT ON OPIOID ADDICTION TREATMENT PROGRAMS

(a) On or before December 15, 2013, the Commissioners of Health and of Vermont Health Access shall provide a written report to the House Committees on Health Care and on Human Services, the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare, and the House and Senate Committees on Judiciary regarding opioid addiction treatment and recovery services being provided in Vermont.

(b) The report shall include:

- (1) each program's capacity, including the number of persons currently served and the program's maximum capacity;
- (2) the number of persons on the waiting list for each program, if applicable, and the average length of time a person spends on the program's waiting list before services become available;
- (3) specific information regarding the number of persons served by each program that uses buprenorphine, buprenorphine/naloxone, or methadone for the treatment of opioid addiction and the number of persons on the waiting list for that program, if any;
- (4) specific information about the implementation of the Hub and Spoke Opioid Integrated Treatment Initiative, including a description of specialty addiction treatment programs and general medical practices currently providing medication-assisted treatment (MAT) and the number of persons currently being served in specialty addiction treatment programs and in Blueprint primary care practices toward a goal of reducing current waiting lists statewide by 90 percent by January 15, 2015;
- (5) how opioid addiction treatment services are integrated with existing recovery and counseling programs in Vermont; and
- (6) the Department of Health's plans for addressing the need for additional opioid addiction treatment programs, including a description of the

resources that the Department would need to meet the statewide demand for specialty services, of continued barriers to treatment, and of particular workforce needs.

* * * Safe Disposal of Prescription Medication * * *

Sec. 16. UNUSED DRUG DISPOSAL PROGRAM PROPOSAL

(a) On or before January 15, 2014, the Commissioners of Health and of Public Safety shall provide recommendations to the House and Senate Committees on Judiciary, the House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care, and the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare regarding the design and implementation of a voluntary statewide drug disposal program for unused over-the-counter and prescription drugs at no charge to the consumer. In preparing their recommendations, the Commissioners shall consider successful unused drug disposal programs in Vermont, including the Bennington County Sheriff's Department's program, and programs in other states.

(b) On or before July 1, 2014, the Commissioners of Health and of Public Safety shall implement the voluntary unused drug disposal program developed pursuant to subsection (a) of this section and shall take steps to publicize the program and to make all Vermont residents aware of opportunities to avail themselves of it.

* * * Preventing Deaths from Opioid Overdose * * *

Sec. 17. 18 V.S.A. § 4240 is added to read:

§ 4240. PREVENTION AND TREATMENT OF OPIOID-RELATED OVERDOSES

(a) As used in this section:

(1) "Health care professional" means a physician licensed pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 23 or 33, a physician's assistant certified to prescribe and dispense prescription drugs pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 31, or an advanced practice registered nurse authorized to prescribe and dispense prescription drugs pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 28.

(2) "Opioid antagonist" means a drug that, when administered, negates or neutralizes in whole or part the pharmacological effects of an opioid in the body.

(3) "Victim" means the person who has overdosed on an opioid drug or who is believed to have overdosed on an opiate drug.

(b) For the purpose of addressing prescription and nonprescription opioid overdoses in Vermont, the Department shall develop and implement a

prevention, intervention, and response strategy, depending on available resources, that shall:

(1) provide educational materials on opioid overdose prevention to the public free of charge, including to substance abuse treatment providers, health care providers, opioid users, and family members of opioid users;

(2) increase community-based prevention programs aimed at reducing risk factors that lead to opioid overdoses;

(3) increase timely access to treatment services for opioid users, including medication-assisted treatment;

(4)(A) educate substance abuse treatment providers on methods to prevent opioid overdoses;

(B) provide education and training on overdose prevention, intervention, and response to individuals living with addiction and participating in opioid treatment programs, syringe exchange programs, residential drug treatment programs, or correctional services;

(5) facilitate overdose prevention, drug treatment, and addiction recovery services by implementing and expanding hospital referral services for individuals treated for an opioid overdose; and

(6) develop a statewide opioid antagonist pilot program that emphasizes access to opioid antagonists to and for the benefit of individuals with a history of opioid use.

(c)(1) A health care professional acting in good faith may directly or by standing order prescribe, dispense, and distribute an opioid antagonist to the following persons, provided the person has been educated about opioid-related overdose prevention and treatment in a manner approved by the Department:

(A) a person at risk of experiencing an opioid-related overdose; or

(B) a family member, friend, or other person in a position to assist a person at risk of experiencing an opioid-related overdose.

(2) A health care professional who prescribes, dispenses, or distributes an opioid antagonist in accordance with subdivision (1) of this subsection shall be immune from civil or criminal liability with regard to the subsequent use of the opioid antagonist, unless the health professional's actions with regard to prescribing, dispensing, or distributing the opioid antagonist constituted recklessness, gross negligence, or intentional misconduct. The immunity granted in this subdivision shall apply whether or not the opioid antagonist is administered by or to a person other than the person for whom it was prescribed.

(d)(1) A person may administer an opioid antagonist to a victim if he or she believes, in good faith, that the victim is experiencing an opioid-related overdose.

(2) After a person has administered an opioid antagonist pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection (d), he or she shall immediately call for emergency medical services if medical assistance has not yet been sought or is not yet present.

(3) A person shall be immune from civil or criminal liability for administering an opioid antagonist to a victim pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection unless the person's actions constituted recklessness, gross negligence, or intentional misconduct. The immunity granted in this subdivision shall apply whether or not the opioid antagonist is administered by or to a person other than the person for whom it was prescribed.

(e) A person acting on behalf of a community-based overdose prevention program shall be immune from civil or criminal liability for providing education on opioid-related overdose prevention or for purchasing, acquiring, distributing, or possessing an opioid antagonist unless the person's actions constituted recklessness, gross negligence, or intentional misconduct.

(f) Any health care professional who treats a victim and who has knowledge that the victim has been administered an opioid antagonist within the preceding 30 days shall refer the victim to professional substance abuse treatment services.

Sec. 18. STATEWIDE OPIOID ANTAGONIST PILOT PROGRAM

(a) The Department of Health shall develop and administer a statewide pilot program for the purpose of distributing opioid antagonists to:

(1) individuals at risk of an opioid overdose;

(2) the family and friends of an individual at risk of experiencing an opioid overdose; and

(3) others who may be in a position to assist individuals experiencing an opioid overdose.

(b) In developing and implementing the pilot program, the Department shall collaborate with community-based substance abuse organizations that have experience delivering opioid-related prevention and treatment services as determined by the Commissioner.

(c) The pilot program shall be in effect from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016. During the term of the pilot program, the Department shall purchase,

provide for the distribution of, and monitor the use of opioid antagonists distributed in accordance with this section.

(d) On or before January 15, 2016, the Department of Health shall submit a report to the House Committees on Human Services, on Health Care, and on Judiciary and to the Senate Committees on Health and Welfare and on Judiciary evaluating the statewide opioid antagonist pilot program. The report shall include findings that pertain to the cost and effectiveness of the program and recommendations as to whether the program should be continued after June 30, 2016.

Sec. 18a. 18 V.S.A. § 5208 is amended to read:

§ 5208. HEALTH DEPARTMENT; REPORT ON STATISTICS

(a) ~~Beginning~~ Notwithstanding the provisions of 2 V.S.A. § 20(d), beginning October 1, 2011 and every two years thereafter, the Vermont ~~department of health~~ Department of Health shall report to the ~~house committee on human services and the senate committee on health and welfare~~ House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care and the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare regarding the number of persons who died during the preceding two calendar years in hospital emergency rooms, other hospital settings, in their own homes, in a nursing home, in a hospice facility, and in any other setting for which information is available, as well as whether each decedent received hospice care within the last 30 days of his or her life. Beginning with the 2013 report, the ~~department~~ Department shall include information on the number of persons who died in hospital intensive care units, assisted living facilities, or residential care homes during the preceding two calendar years.

(b) In addition to the report required by subsection (a) of this section and notwithstanding the provisions of 2 V.S.A. § 20(d), beginning March 1, 2014 and annually thereafter, the Department shall report to the House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care, the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare, and the House and Senate Committees on Judiciary regarding the number of persons who died during the preceding calendar year from an overdose of a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance. The report shall list separately the number of deaths specifically related to opioids, including for each death whether an opioid antagonist was administered and whether it was administered by persons other than emergency medical personnel, firefighters, or law enforcement officers. Beginning in 2015, the report shall include similar data from prior years to allow for comparison.

* * * Protecting Communities from Methamphetamine Abuse * * *

Sec. 19. 18 V.S.A. § 4234b is amended to read:

§ 4234b. EPHEDRINE AND PSEUDOEPHEDRINE

* * *

(b) Sale.

(1) A drug product containing ephedrine base, pseudoephedrine base, or phenylpropanolamine base shall not be distributed at retail to the general public unless it is maintained in a locked display case or behind the counter out of the public's reach.

(2)(A) A retail establishment shall not knowingly ~~sell~~ complete a sale to a person ~~within a calendar day~~ any if the drug product or combination of drug products ~~containing~~ purchased would surpass a total of more than 3.6 grams within a 24-hour period or nine grams within a 30-day period of ephedrine base, pseudoephedrine base, or phenylpropanolamine base or their isomers.

(B) This subdivision shall not apply to drug products dispensed pursuant to a valid prescription.

(3) A person or business which violates this subdivision shall:

(A) for a first violation be assessed a civil penalty of not more than \$100.00; ~~and~~

(B) for a second and subsequent violation be assessed a civil penalty of not more than \$500.00.

(c) Electronic registry system.

(1)(A) Retail establishments shall use an electronic registry system to record the sale of products made pursuant to subsection (b) of this section. The electronic registry system shall have the capacity to block a sale of nonprescription drug products containing ephedrine base, pseudoephedrine base, or phenylpropanolamine base that would result in a purchaser exceeding the lawful daily or monthly amount. The system shall contain an override function that may be used by an agent of a retail establishment who is dispensing the drug product and who has a reasonable fear of imminent bodily harm to his or her person or to another person if the transaction is not completed. The system shall create a record of each use of the override mechanism.

(B) The electronic registry system shall be available free of charge to the State of Vermont, retail establishments, and local law enforcement agencies.

(C) The electronic registry system shall operate in real time to enable communication among in-state users and users of similar systems in neighboring states.

(D) The State shall use the National Precursor Log Exchange (NPLEx) online portal or its equivalent to host Vermont's electronic registry system.

(2)(A) Prior to completing a sale under subsection (b) of this section, a retail establishment shall require the person purchasing the drug product to present a current, valid government-issued identification document. The retail establishment shall record in the electronic registry system:

(i) the name and address of the purchaser;

(ii) the name of the drug product and quantity of ephedrine, pseudoephedrine, and phenylpropanolamine base sold in grams;

(iii) the date and time of purchase;

(iv) the form of identification presented, the issuing government entity, and the corresponding identification number; and

(v) the name of the person selling or furnishing the drug product.

(B)(i) If the retail establishment experiences an electronic or mechanical failure of the electronic registry system and is unable to comply with the electronic recording requirement, the retail establishment shall maintain a written log or an alternative electronic record-keeping mechanism until the retail establishment is able to comply fully with this subsection (c).

(ii) If the region of the State where the retail establishment is located does not have broadband Internet access, the retail establishment shall maintain a written log or an alternative electronic record-keeping mechanism until broadband Internet access becomes accessible to that region. At that time, the retail establishment shall come into compliance with this subsection (c).

(C) A retail establishment shall maintain all records of drug product purchases made pursuant to this subsection (c) for a minimum of two years.

(3) A retail establishment shall display a sign at the register provided by NPLEx or its equivalent to notify purchasers of drug products containing ephedrine, pseudoephedrine, or phenylpropanolamine base that:

(A) the purchase of the drug product or products shall result in the purchaser's identity being listed on a national database; and

(B) the purchaser has the right to request the transaction number for any purchase that was denied pursuant to this subsection (c).

(4) Except as provided in subdivision (5) of this subsection (c), a person or retail establishment that violates this subsection shall:

(A) for a first violation be assessed a civil penalty of not more than \$100.00; and

(B) for a second or subsequent violation be assessed a civil penalty of not more than \$500.00.

(d) This section shall not apply to a manufacturer which that has obtained an exemption from the Attorney General of the United States under Section 711(d) of the federal Combat Methamphetamine Epidemic Act of 2005.

~~(d)~~(e) As used in this section:

(1) “Distributor” means a person, other than a manufacturer or wholesaler, who sells, delivers, transfers, or in any manner furnishes a drug product to any person who is not the ultimate user or consumer of the product.

(2) “Knowingly” means having actual knowledge of the relevant facts.

(3) “Manufacturer” means a person who produces, compounds, packages, or in any manner initially prepares a drug product for sale or use.

(4) “Wholesaler” means a person, other than a manufacturer, who sells, transfers, or in any manner furnishes a drug product to any other person for the purpose of being resold.

Sec. 19a. 18 V.S.A. § 4234b is amended to read:

§ 4234b. EPHEDRINE AND PSEUDOEPHEDRINE

* * *

~~(c) Electronic registry system.~~

~~(1)(A) Retail establishments shall use an electronic registry system to record the sale of products made pursuant to subsection (b) of this section. The electronic registry system shall have the capacity to block a sale of nonprescription drug products containing ephedrine base, pseudoephedrine base, or phenylpropanolamine base that would result in a purchaser exceeding the lawful daily or monthly amount. The system shall contain an override function that may be used by an agent of a retail establishment who is dispensing the drug product and who has a reasonable fear of imminent bodily harm to his or her person or to a co worker if the transaction is not completed. The system shall create a record of each use of the override mechanism.~~

~~(B) The electronic registry system shall be available free of charge to the State of Vermont, retail establishments, and local law enforcement agencies.~~

~~(C) The electronic registry system shall operate in real time to enable communication among in state users and users of similar systems in neighboring states.~~

~~(D) The State shall use the National Precursor Log Exchange (NPLEx) online portal or its equivalent to host Vermont's electronic registry system.~~

~~(2)(A) Prior to completing a sale under subsection (b) of this section, a retail establishment shall require the person purchasing the drug product to present a current, valid government issued identification document. The retail establishment shall record in the electronic registry system:~~

~~(i) the name and address of the purchaser;~~

~~(ii) the name of the drug product and quantity of ephedrine, pseudoephedrine, and phenylpropanolamine base sold in grams;~~

~~(iii) the date and time of purchase;~~

~~(iv) the form of identification presented, the issuing government entity, and the corresponding identification number; and~~

~~(v) the name of the person selling or furnishing the drug product.~~

~~(B)(i) If the retail establishment experiences an electronic or mechanical failure of the electronic registry system and is unable to comply with the electronic recording requirement, the retail establishment shall maintain a written log or an alternative electronic record keeping mechanism until the retail establishment is able to comply fully with this subsection (c).~~

~~(ii) If the region of the State where the retail establishment is located does not have broadband Internet access, the retail establishment shall maintain a written log or an alternative electronic record keeping mechanism until broadband Internet access becomes accessible to that region. At that time, the retail establishment shall come into compliance with this subsection (c).~~

~~(C) A retail establishment shall maintain all records of drug product purchases made pursuant to this subsection (c) for a minimum of two years.~~

~~(3) A retail establishment shall display a sign at the register provided by NPLEx or its equivalent to notify purchasers of drug products containing ephedrine, pseudoephedrine, or phenylpropanolamine base that:~~

~~(A) the purchase of the drug product or products shall result in the purchaser's identity being listed on a national database; and~~

~~(B) the purchaser has the right to request the transaction number for any purchase that was denied pursuant to this subsection (c).~~

~~(4) Except as provided in subdivision (5) of this subsection (c), a person or retail establishment that violates this subsection shall:~~

~~(A) for a first violation be assessed a civil penalty of not more than \$100.00; and~~

~~(B) for a second or subsequent violation be assessed a civil penalty of not more than \$500.00. [Repealed]~~

(d) This section shall not apply to a manufacturer that has obtained an exemption from the Attorney General of the United States under Section 711(d) of the federal Combat Methamphetamine Epidemic Act of 2005.

(e) As used in this section:

(1) "Distributor" means a person, other than a manufacturer or wholesaler, who sells, delivers, transfers, or in any manner furnishes a drug product to any person who is not the ultimate user or consumer of the product.

(2) "Knowingly" means having actual knowledge of the relevant facts.

(3) "Manufacturer" means a person who produces, compounds, packages, or in any manner initially prepares a drug product for sale or use.

(4) "Wholesaler" means a person, other than a manufacturer, who sells, transfers, or in any manner furnishes a drug product to any other person for the purpose of being resold.

Sec. 20. THE EFFECT OF METHAMPHETAMINE PRODUCTION ON HOUSING

(a) The Commissioner of Health shall recommend guidance for reoccupancy of a structure that was used in the production of methamphetamine.

(b) The Commissioner shall examine:

(1) Approaches for identifying housing that is or has been used for methamphetamine production and methods for making such housing safe, including:

(A) standards for reoccupancy;

(B) whether purchasers or tenants of housing that has been affected by methamphetamine production should be provided with notification of such, and if so, how; and

(C) methods taken by other states in identifying, quarantining, and cleaning such housing as well as methods used by other states to notify affected parties.

(2) The public health effects of long-term exposure to housing that is or has been contaminated by by-products resulting from production of methamphetamine.

(c) The Commissioner shall report his or her findings, including any recommendations or proposed legislation to the House Committees on General, Housing and Military Affairs, on Judiciary, on Health Care, and on Human Services and the Senate Committees on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs, on Judiciary, and on Health and Welfare on or before June 15, 2014.

* * * Community Safety * * *

Sec. 21. 13 V.S.A. § 3705 is amended to read:

§ 3705. UNLAWFUL TRESPASS

(a)(1) A person shall be imprisoned for not more than three months or fined not more than \$500.00, or both, if, without legal authority or the consent of the person in lawful possession, he or she enters or remains on any land or in any place as to which notice against trespass is given by:

~~(1)(A) Actual~~ actual communication by the person in lawful possession or his or her agent or by a law enforcement officer acting on behalf of such person or his or her agent; ~~or~~

~~(2)(B) Signs~~ signs or placards so designed and situated as to give reasonable notice; or

(C) in the case of abandoned property:

(i) signs or placards, posted by the owner, the owner's agent, or a law enforcement officer, and so designed and situated as to give reasonable notice; or

(ii) actual communication by a law enforcement officer.

(2) As used in this subsection, "abandoned property" means:

(A) Real property on which there is a vacant structure that for the previous 60 days has been continuously unoccupied by a person with the legal right to occupy it and with respect to which the municipality has by first class mail to the owner's last known address provided the owner with notice and an opportunity to be heard; and

(i) property taxes have been delinquent for six months or more; or

(ii) one or more utility services have been disconnected.

(B) A railroad car that for the previous 60 days has been unremoved and unoccupied by a person with the legal right to occupy it.

(b) Prosecutions for offenses under subsection (a) of this section shall be commenced within 60 days following the commission of the offense and not thereafter.

(c) A person who enters a building other than a residence, whose ~~normal~~ access is normally locked, whether or not the access is actually locked, or a residence in violation of an order of any court of competent jurisdiction in this ~~state~~ State shall be imprisoned for not more than one year or fined not more than \$500.00, or both.

(d) A person who enters a dwelling house, whether or not a person is actually present, knowing that he or she is not licensed or privileged to do so shall be imprisoned for not more than three years or fined not more than \$2,000.00, or both.

Sec. 22. [DELETED.]

Sec. 22a. 9 V.S.A. chapter 97 is amended to read:

CHAPTER 97. PAWNBROKERS

* * *

§ 3865. RECORDS OF A PAWNBROKER OR SECONDHAND DEALER

(a) In each year a pawnbroker or secondhand dealer resells over ~~\$500.00~~ \$2,500.00 of items pawned, pledged, or sold to the pawnbroker or secondhand dealer, he or she shall maintain the following records for each transaction in that year:

(1) a legible statement written at the time of the transaction stating the amount of money lent or paid for the items pawned, pledged, or sold, the time of the transaction, and the rate of interest to be paid on the loan, as applicable;

(2) a legible statement of the name, current address, telephone number, and vehicle license number of the person pawning, pledging, or selling the items;

(3) a legible written description and photograph, or alternatively a video, of the items pawned, pledged, or sold;

(4) a photocopy of a government-issued identification card issued to the person pawning, pledging, or selling the items, if available.

(b) At all reasonable times, the records required under subsection (a) of this section shall be open to the inspection of law enforcement. A law enforcement agency shall make a reasonable effort to notify a dealer before conducting an inspection pursuant to this section unless providing notice would interfere with a criminal investigation or any other legitimate law enforcement purpose.

(c) In this section:

(1) "Precious metal" means gold, silver, platinum, or palladium.

(2) "Secondhand dealer" means a person engaged in the business of purchasing used or estate precious metal, coins, ~~antiques, furniture,~~ jewelry, or similar items for the purpose of resale.

* * *

§ 3871. PENALTIES

(a) A licensee who violates a provision of sections ~~3863-3870~~ 3863-3864 or 3866-3870 of this title, shall be fined not more than \$100.00 nor less than \$10.00 for each offense.

(b) A pawnbroker or precious metal dealer who violates a provision of section 3865 or 3872 of this chapter:

(1) may be assessed a civil penalty not to exceed \$1,000.00 for a first violation; and

(2) shall be fined not more than \$25,000.00 for a second or subsequent violation.

* * *

Sec. 22b. PUBLIC OUTREACH TO VERMONT PRECIOUS METAL DEALERS

The Department of Public Safety shall design and implement a public outreach campaign to inform and educate pawnbrokers, precious metal dealers, and others affected by 9 V.S.A. chapter 97 of the current statutory provisions governing the purchase and sale of precious metals, including:

(1) the items that should be regulated as "precious metal" or other secondhand goods;

(2) the type of transactions governed by the chapter;

(3) the recordkeeping requirements of the chapter;

(4) the 10-day holding period requirement;

(5) methods for increasing communication with the Department of Public Safety regarding possible suspicious activity within their business transactions; and

(6) other information supporting the purpose of the campaign.

Sec. 22c. INTERIM STUDY COMMITTEE ON THE REGULATION OF PRECIOUS METAL DEALERS

(a) Creation of committee. There is created an Interim Study Committee on the Regulation of Precious Metal Dealers, the purpose of which shall be to examine the current practices in the trade of precious metals in Vermont, the nexus of that trade to drug-related and other illegal activity, and to provide recommendations to the General Assembly on the most effective means of regulating the trade to decrease the amount of related illegal activity and promote the recovery of stolen property.

(b) Membership. The Committee shall be composed of the following members:

(1) a Vermont-based representative from the New England Jewelers Association;

(2) a representative from the Vermont Antique Dealers Association;

(3) a Vermont-based coin dealer appointed by the Governor;

(4) a representative of local law enforcement from the Vermont Police Association;

(5) a Vermont-based auctioneer appointed by the Governor;

(6) a private citizen who has been affected by the theft of precious metals appointed by the Governor;

(7) a representative from a Vermont-based business that uses precious metal for manufacturing or industrial purposes appointed by the Governor;

(8) a representative from the jewelry manufacturing industry appointed by the Governor;

(9) a representative from the Vermont State's Attorneys and Sheriffs' Association;

(10) the Commissioner of Public Safety or designee, who shall serve as Chair of the Committee;

(11) the Vermont Attorney General or designee;

(12) a member of the House of Representatives, appointed by the Speaker of the House; and

(13) a member of the Senate, appointed by the Senate Committee on Committees.

(c) Powers and duties.

(1) The Committee shall study methods for increasing cooperation between law enforcement and precious metal dealers in an effort to prevent the theft of these items and retrieve stolen goods, including the following:

(A) the advisability, cost, and effectiveness of creating and maintaining a stolen property database and website for the purpose of posting pictures and information about stolen items;

(B) the creation of a licensing system for precious metal dealers, including what information would be required of applicants, who would be eligible for a license, and how the licensing program would be implemented;

(C) refinement of the recordkeeping requirements for precious metal dealers, including the possibility of requiring sales of a certain amount to be recorded electronically; and

(D) any other issues related to precious metal as the Committee deems appropriate.

(2) For purposes of its study of these issues, the Committee shall have the administrative, technical, and legal assistance of the Office of Legislative Council and the Joint Fiscal Office.

(d) Report. On or before January 1, 2014, the Committee shall report to the Senate Committees on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs and on Judiciary, and the House Committees on Commerce and Economic Development and on Judiciary its findings and any recommendations for legislative action.

(e) Meetings.

(1) Seven members of the Committee shall be physically present at the same location to constitute a quorum.

(2) Action shall be taken only if there is both a quorum and an affirmative vote of the members physically present and voting.

(3) The Committee may meet no more than five times, and shall cease to exist on January 2, 2014.

(4) Legislative members of the Committee shall be entitled to the same per diem compensation and reimbursement as provided to members of standing committees under 2 V.S.A. § 406. Nonlegislative members of the Committee who are not state employees and who are not otherwise compensated for their participation by their employer or association shall be entitled to per diem compensation as provided in 32 V.S.A. § 1010.

* * * Effective Dates * * *

Sec. 23. EFFECTIVE DATES; SUNSET

(a) This section and Secs. 2a (emergency rules), 3a (board of pharmacy; rulemaking), 11(e) (Health Department rules), 11(f) (licensing authority standards), 13 (VPMS Advisory Committee), 13b (prevention report), 20 (study committee on the effects of the production of methamphetamine and other illegal drugs on housing), 22a (9 V.S.A. chapter 97A; secondhand dealers), 22b (public outreach; precious metal dealers), and 22c (interim study; precious metal dealers) of this act shall take effect on passage.

(b) Secs. 10 (18 V.S.A. § 4288; reciprocal agreements), 12 (18 V.S.A. § 4290; replacement prescriptions), and 19 (18 V.S.A. § 4234b; ephedrine and pseudoephedrine), and Sec. 8(b)(2)(G) (18 V.S.A. § 4284(b)(2)(G); interstate data sharing) of this act shall take effect on October 1, 2013.

(c) Sec. 11(d) (VPMS query requirements) of this act shall take effect on November 15, 2013.

(d) Sec. 19a (18 V.S.A. § 4234b; ephedrine and pseudoephedrine) of this act shall take effect on September 30, 2016.

(e) The remaining sections of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2013.

And that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with such proposal of amendment.

Senator Nitka, for the Committee on Appropriations, to which the bill was referred, reported recommending that the Senate propose to the House that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Health and Welfare with the following amendments thereto:

First: In Sec. 22c, in subsection (b), by inserting and at the end of subdivision (10), by striking the semicolon at the end of subdivision (11) and inserting in lieu thereof a period, and by striking out subdivisions (12) and (13) in their entireties

Second: In Sec. 22c, in subsection (e), by striking out subdivision (4) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subdivision (4) to read as follows:

(4) Members of the Committee who are not state employees and who are not otherwise compensated for their participation by their employer or association shall be entitled to per diem compensation as provided in 32 V.S.A. § 1010(b).

And that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with such proposals of amendment.

Thereupon, the bill was read the second time by title only pursuant to Rule 43, and the recommendation of proposal of amendment of the Committee on Health and Welfare was amended as recommended by the Committee on Appropriations.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the Senate propose to the House that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Health and Welfare, as amended?, Senator Sears moved to amend the proposal of amendment of the Committee on Health and Welfare, as amended, by striking out Secs. 4 and 5 in their entirety.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the proposal of amendment of the Committee on Health and Welfare, as amended be amended as proposed by Senator Sears?, Senator Campbell moved that the Senate recess until one o'clock.

Which was agreed to.

Called to Order

The Senate was called to order by the President.

Message from the House No. 57

A message was received from the House of Representatives by Ms. H. Gwynn Zakov, its Second Assistant Clerk, as follows:

Mr. President:

I am directed to inform the Senate that:

The House has considered Senate proposals of amendment to House bill of the following title:

H. 528. An act relating to revenue changes for fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 2015.

And has refused to concur therein and asks for a Committee of Conference upon the disagreeing votes of the two Houses;

And the Speaker appointed as members of such Committee on the part of the House:

Rep. Ancel of Calais
Rep. Condon of Colchester
Rep. Wilson of Manchester

Consideration Resumed; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered**H. 522.**

Consideration was resumed on Senate bill entitled:

An act relating to strengthening Vermont's response to opioid addiction and methamphetamine abuse.

Thereupon, the pending question, Shall the proposal of amendment of the Committee on Health and Welfare, as amended be amended as proposed by Senator Sears?, was disagreed to.

Thereupon, the proposal of amendment recommended by the Committee on Health and Welfare, as amended, was agreed to.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the bill be read a third time?, Senator Sears moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended in Sec. 5 by striking out the last sentence in its entirety.

Which was disagreed to on a division of the Senate, Yeas 10, Nays 17.

Thereupon, third reading of the bill was ordered.

Proposals of Amendment Amended; Bill Passed in Concurrence with Proposal of Amendment**H. 530.**

House bill entitled:

An act relating to making appropriations for the support of government.

Was taken up.

Thereupon, pending third reading of the bill, Senator Kitchel, on behalf of the Committee on Appropriations moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended as follows:

First: By striking out Sec. B.113 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. B.113 to read as follows:

Sec. B.113 Buildings and general services - engineering

Personal services	2,327,747
Operating expenses	<u>474,850</u>
Total	2,802,597
Source of funds	
Interdepartmental transfers	<u>2,802,597</u>
Total	2,802,597

Second: By striking out Sec. B.204 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. B.204 to read as follows:

Sec. B.204 Judiciary

Personal services	32,218,222
Operating expenses	8,707,574
Grants	<u>70,000</u>
Total	40,995,796
Source of funds	
General fund	35,067,633
Special funds	3,235,319
Tobacco fund	39,871
Federal funds	714,176
Interdepartmental transfers	<u>1,938,797</u>
Total	40,995,796

Third: In Sec. E.113(a), by striking out the figure “\$2,802,647” and inserting in lieu thereof the figure \$2,802,597

Fourth: In Sec. E.222, by striking out the header “Sec. E.222 Agriculture, food and markets – administration” and inserting in lieu thereof a new header to read as follows:

Sec. E.225 Agriculture, food and markets – laboratories, agricultural resource management and environmental stewardship

Fifth: By striking out Sec. E.300.1 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. E.300.1 to read as follows:

Sec. E.300.1 AGENCY OF HUMAN SERVICES PROGRAMS AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE CONTINUUM OF SERVICES; REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION

(a) To ensure Agency programs serve persons with substance abuse and persons with co-occurring substance abuse, medical, and mental health conditions, the Secretary of Human Services shall report on the capacity of the system, including outpatient, inpatient, residential treatment, and recovery substance abuse, medical, and mental health services to address these needs. In addition to the resources of the Agency, the Secretary may seek the advice and consultation of independent persons with clinical case management and public policy expertise to assess current policies and resources available within the Agency and make recommendations to change current policies, change the allocations of resources, restructure payment systems, and prioritize future additional resources. The Secretary of Education, the Commissioner of Labor, the Administrative Judge in the Judiciary, and leaders in the State’s law enforcement agencies are expected to be available as needed for consultation in

this effort as well as the report on opioid addiction required in H.522 of the 2013 legislative session. The Secretary of Human Services shall report to the General Assembly with this assessment and recommendations by January 15, 2014.

Sixth: In Sec. E.333(e), by striking out the words “General Assembly” and inserting in lieu thereof the words Joint Fiscal Committee

Which was agreed to.

Senator Kitchel, on behalf of the Committee on Appropriations, moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended as follows:

In Sec. E.323.1 by striking subsection (d) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (d) to read as follows:

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this section, a participating family that does not have a qualifying deferment under section 1114 of this title and that has exceeded the cumulative 60-month lifetime eligibility period set forth in subsection (a) of this section shall qualify for a hardship exemption that allows the adult member of the participating family to receive:

(1) a wage equivalent to that of the participating family’s cash benefit under the Reach Up Program for participation in community service employment; or

(2) supplemental benefits to the wages of the adult member of the participating family if the work requirement is otherwise being met.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the Senate proposal of amendment be amended as proposed by Senator Kitchell, on behalf of the Committee on Appropriations?, Senator Lyons moved to amend the proposal of amendment as follows:

In Sec. E.323.1 in subsection (d) (1) by striking out the following: “; or” and in (d)(2) at the end of the subsection by inserting the following: ; or and by adding a new subsection (3) to read as follows:

(3) financial assistance to the participating family if it is meeting its obligations under the family development plan.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the proposal of amendment of Senator Kitchel, on behalf of the Committee on Appropriations be amended as recommended by Senator Lyons?, Senator Lyons, requested and was granted leave to withdraw the proposal of amendment.

Thereupon, the pending question, Shall the Senate proposal of amendment be amended as recommended by Senator Kitchel, on behalf of the Committee on Appropriations?, was agreed to.

Senator Sears moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended by adding a new section to be numbered Sec. E.207.1 to read as follows:

Sec. E.207.1 BENNINGTON COUNTY TRANSPORT

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, the transport contract for Bennington County shall be returned to the Office of the Bennington County Sheriff.

Which was agreed to on a division of the Senate, Yeas 17, Nays 12.

Senator Pollina moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended as follows:

First: By striking out Secs. E.323 through E.323.6 and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. E.323 REPORT ON LONG-TERM REACH UP PARTICIPANTS

On or before January 15, 2014, the Commissioner for Children and Families shall submit a written report to the House Committees on Appropriations and on Human Services and to the Senate Committees on Appropriations and on Health and Welfare regarding:

(1) the aggregated profile of participating families receiving long-term assistance from the Reach Up Program in excess of 60 months, including any common barriers that prevent participating families from moving to self-sufficiency;

(2) the anticipated impact that time limits related to eligibility for financial assistance would have on participating families; and

(3) the fiscal impact of time limits related to eligibility for financial assistance and any other changes to the Reach Up Program under consideration by the Department for Children and Families.

Sec. E.323.1 REACH UP POLICY WORK GROUP

(a)(1) The Commissioner for Children and Families or designee shall convene and chair a work group to examine public policy options for restructuring the Reach Up Program in a manner that encourages participating families to graduate from the Program.

(2) The Commissioner or designee shall convene the first meeting of the Work Group on or before July 15, 2013.

(b) The Work Group shall be composed of:

(1) individuals with expertise in administering the Reach Up Program;

(2) individuals with expertise in assisting Reach Up participants;

(3) one or more Reach Up participants;

(4) representatives of community service providers or other agencies outside State government; and

(5) Vermont advocates for children and families.

(c) On or before November 1, 2013, the Work Group shall submit a written report containing its findings and recommendations for restructuring the Reach Up Program to the House Committees on Appropriations and on Human Services and to the Senate Committees on Appropriations and on Health and Welfare. Thereafter, the Work Group shall cease to exist.

(d) Members of the Work Group who are not state employees and who are not otherwise compensated by their employment or association for their participation shall be entitled to per diem compensation as provided in 32 V.S.A. § 1010.

Second: In Sec. F.100, by striking out subsection (a) and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(a) This section and Secs. C.100 (fiscal year 2013 budget adjustment, Secretary of State), C.101 (fiscal year 2013 budget adjustment, Attorney General), C.102 (fiscal year 2013 budget adjustment, protection function total), C.103 (fiscal year 2013 budget adjustment, Transportation – program development), C.104 (fiscal year 2013 budget adjustment, Transportation Infrastructure Bonds Debt Service), C.105 (fiscal year 2013 budget adjustment, Debt service and Debt service function total), D.102 (tobacco litigation settlement fund balance), E.323 (Report on Long-Term Reach Up Participants), and E.323.1 (Reach Up Policy Work Group) of this act shall take effect on passage.

And by striking out subsections (g) and (h) in their entirety.

Which was disagreed to.

Senator Galbraith moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended by striking out Sec. B.605 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. B.605 to read as follows:

Sec. B.605 Vermont student assistance corporation

Grants	<u>19,914,515</u>
Total	19,914,515
Source of funds	
General fund	<u>19,914,515</u>
Total	19,914,515

Which was disagreed to on a roll call, Yeas 4, Nays 25.

Senator Galbraith having demanded the yeas and nays, they were taken and are as follows:

Roll Call

Those Senators who voted in the affirmative were: Ashe, Collins, Galbraith, Pollina.

Those Senators who voted in the negative were: Ayer, Baruth, Benning, Campbell, Cummings, Doyle, Flory, Fox, French, Hartwell, Kitchel, Lyons, MacDonald, Mazza, McAllister, McCormack, Mullin, Nitka, Rodgers, Sears, Snelling, Starr, Westman, White, Zuckerman.

The Senator absent and not voting was: Bray.

Senator Galbraith moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended by adding a new section to be numbered Sec. E.605.1 to read as follows:

Sec. E.605.1 CONDITION OF VERMONT STUDENT ASSISTANCE CORPORATION STATE FUNDING

(a) The funds appropriated in Sec. B.605 of this act shall only be granted if the total compensation of the Chief Executive Officer of the Vermont Student Assistance Corporation is at or below the level of the Governor for the fiscal year.

Which was disagreed to on a roll call, Yeas 5, Nays 24.

Senator Galbraith having demanded the yeas and nays, they were taken and are as follows:

Roll Call

Those Senators who voted in the affirmative were: Galbraith, Hartwell, McAllister, Mullin, Pollina.

Those Senators who voted in the negative were: Ashe, Ayer, Baruth, Benning, Campbell, Collins, Cummings, Doyle, Flory, Fox, French, Kitchel, Lyons, MacDonald, Mazza, McCormack, Nitka, Rodgers, Sears, Snelling, Starr, Westman, White, Zuckerman.

The Senator absent and not voting was: Bray.

Senator Ashe moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended as follows:

First: By adding a sentence at the end of C.100.1(b) to read as follows:

No funds shall be expended until approved by the Joint Fiscal Committee.

Second: By striking out Sec. E.101.1 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. E.101.1 to read as follows:

Sec. E.101.1 REPEAL

(a) 29 V.S.A. § 1402 (preference to vermont companies, agents) is repealed.

Third: In Sec. E.141, by adding a new subsection (d) to read as follows:

(d) The Executive Director of the Lottery Commission and the Secretary of Human Services shall submit recommendations to the House and Senate Committees on Appropriations on or before January 15, 2014 on the advisability of transferring the Problem Gambling Program from a grant program to a program performed by state employees.

Fourth: By striking out Sec. E.800(a) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) to read as follows:

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the Secretary is authorized to renew or continue in fiscal year 2014 any grants made under the provisions of the 2012 Acts and Resolves No. 162, Sec.E.800.5(a), but shall not issue any new grants or awards under this provision.

Which was agreed to.

Senator Zuckerman moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended in Sec. E.323.1 by striking out subsection (b) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(b) Deferment granted for the following reasons shall not count toward the Reach Up Program's cumulative 60-month lifetime eligibility period:

(1) The participant is not able-to-work.

(2) The participant has a modification or deferment pursuant to subdivision 1114 of this chapter.

Which was disagreed to.

Senator Pollina moved that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended in Sec. E.333 as follows:

First: By striking out subsection (a) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(a) There is established a Developmental Services Task Force composed of the following nine members:

(1) the Secretary of Human Services or designee, who shall serve as chair;

(2) a member of the House of Representatives, appointed by the Speaker of the House;

(3) a member of the Senate, appointed by the Committee on Committees;

(4) the Commissioner of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living or designee;

(5) the Director of Developmental Services or designee;

(6) two members appointed by the Vermont Council of Developmental and Mental Health Services;

(7) two members appointed by the Developmental Disabilities Council who may be any combination of a parent of, a family member of, or a person with a disability.

Second: By striking out subsection (d) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(d) The Task Force shall:

(1) identify and review an appropriate random sample of identity-protected individual developmental services case files from each of the designated service providers to assess whether the methods of case planning and oversight should be revised and whether alternative practices could be identified to achieve \$2.5 million in savings during fiscal year 2014 through more cost-effective use of the resources available for developmental services that benefit individuals with developmental disabilities and their families; and

(2) make recommendations regarding a strategic planning process for developmental services based on the values in 1996 Acts and Resolves No. 174, including the active involvement of individuals with intellectual disabilities and their families.

Third: In subsection (e), by striking out the following: “General Assembly” and inserting in lieu thereof the following: Joint Fiscal Committee

Fourth: By striking out subsection (f) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(f) It is the expectation of the General Assembly that the Department and developmental service providers will work to manage the service needs within the funds appropriated, which may include changes that result in more cost-effective program administration. However, no modifications to the system of care plan or rescissions shall be applied before the Joint Fiscal Committee has considered the report of the Task Force and has had an opportunity to take action.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the Senate proposal of amendment be amended as proposed by Senator Pollina?, Senator Galbraith moved that the question be divided. Thereupon, the *first* proposal of amendment was disagreed to. Thereupon, the *second, third* and *fourth* proposals of amendment were disagreed to.

Thereupon, the bill was read the third time and passed in concurrence with proposal of amendment on a roll call, Yeas 24, Nays 4.

Senator Sears having demanded the yeas and nays, they were taken and are as follows:

Roll Call

Those Senators who voted in the affirmative were: Ashe, Ayer, Baruth, Campbell, Collins, Cummings, Doyle, Fox, French, Galbraith, Hartwell, Kitchel, Lyons, MacDonald, Mazza, McCormack, Mullin, Nitka, Rodgers, Sears, Snelling, Starr, Westman, White.

Those Senators who voted in the negative were: Benning, *Flory, McAllister, Pollina.

Those Senators absent and not voting were: Bray, Zuckerman.

*Senator Flory explained her vote as follows:

“This bill reflects a lot of hard work and very thoughtful consideration of difficult issues. I agree with much of it. Unfortunately, the one issue that the committee has little ability to control is the area that consumes an ever increasing part of the budget, the ever increasing Education costs to the State that put us in this budget problem.”

Thereupon, on motion of Senator Campbell, the rules were suspended, and the bill was ordered messaged to the House forthwith.

Committee of Conference Appointed

H. 528.

An act relating to revenue changes for fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 2015.

Was taken up. Pursuant to the request of the House, the President announced the appointment of

Senator Ashe
Senator MacDonald
Senator Mullin

as members of the Committee of Conference on the part of the Senate to consider the disagreeing votes of the two Houses.

Adjournment

On motion of Senator Campbell, the Senate adjourned until nine o'clock and thirty minutes in the morning.